MINUTES OF SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MARIN VALLEY MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB
100 MARIN VALLEY DRIVE
TUESDAY, JUNE 3, 2014 - 7:17 P.M.

A. CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

Present: Mayor Lucan
Mayor Pro Tem MacLeamy
Councilmember Athas
Councilmember Eklund
Councilmember Kellner

Absent: None

Also Present: Assistant City Manager Cathy Capriola, Engineering Manager Julian
Skinner, Finance Manager Brian Cochran, Assistant City Attorney Veronica Nebb and
City Clerk Sheri Hartz.

B. APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA

Councilmember Eklund moved, Seconded by Councilmember Athas, to approve the Final
Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Alan Gump thanked staff for its work on the budget.

Mike Read asked when the change of ownership discussions would resume, discussed the
downturn in profit for the Park and opposed a rent increase.

3. Valerie Barber asked for an update on the status of Trust for Public Lands properties
recently acquired.

™=

Assistant City Manager Capriola responded to questions raised during Public Comment, stating
that the ownership discussions would be picked back up in the fall of 2014 and that staff is
actively working with Federal government officials on the TPL transaction.
D. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. RECEIVE APPROVED MINUTES OF DECEMBER 9, 2013

2. MONTHLY FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - NOVEMBER 2013 THROUGH
APRIL 2014

Councilmember Kellner moved, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem MacLeamy, to approve the
Consent Calendar. The motion carried unanimously.

cc140603_MVMCC
7111/2014 1



E. GENERAL BUSINESS

3. FY 14/15 BUDGET — OPERATING AND CAPITAL FOR MARIN VALLEY
MOBILE COUNTRY CLUB (MVMCC)

Presentation and overview of the annual MVMCC budget. Review, accept input,
and take action on the FY 14/15 Operating and Capital Budget for the Marin
Valley Mobile Country Club.

Assistant City Manager Capriola gave the staff presentation. She stated that the budget was
prepared by Frei Real Estate and then reviewed and approved by the PAC, who held a resident
meeting and gave resident input back to Frei. She said the recommended rent increase was 2%,
and added a reminder that there had been no increase in rent since 2009 when it was only 3%.
She stated that the increase was needed to help maintain the Park’s infrastructure. She concluded
by stating that the increase amount was tied to CPI.

Ms. Capriola reported that the hiring of Manager Matt Greenberg had greatly benefitted the Park,
but had resulted in compensation increases. She said that Mr. Greenberg was catching up with
capital improvement projects which he was driving. She stated that other planned improvements
included a projector and screen and security cameras, and that the City recommended consulting
with the Police Department to learn best practice. She added that the emergency services team
would get money toward training.

Regarding the Capital Budget, she stated that some projects are rolling over from the prior year
such as painting, air conditioning, the driveway and renovation of the ballroom floor after the
ADA study was complete, as well as shades and awnings for clubhouse, clubhouse beams, and
continuing geotechnical work.

Engineering Manager Skinner reported on long-term infrastructure, stating there were three
capital projects for 2015 identified in the Conditions Report:

1. Two pump stations: Current pumps are out of date and require maintenance; need to be
upgraded to meet code ($60K)

2. Slope stability: Preliminary work has been done, but more investigation is needed on
hillsides to determine the stabilization and design improvements necessary. ($185K)

3. ADA clubhouse improvements: Need a plan to systematically address total need of

$300K. Will use help of an architect to prioritize and work with PAC to address Park
interests. ($105K this year)

Mr. Skinner also reported on the Engineering Study, recommending that funding for this be
taken out of the infrastructure reserve fund. He went on to say that the Condition Report
contained good and bad news with nothing being at the failure stage, but that age will eventually
become a factor. He estimated that most of the systems in the Park would need to be replaced
within a 10- to 20-year time frame. He explained that we need to plan how we would gradually

cc140603_MVMCC
7111/2014 2



replace all of the utilities within the Park which would cost approximately $7 to $10M, of which
$700,000 to $1M would be for engineering. He said that the utilities run under the coach units,
which is not ideal, and that we would be doing some preliminary engineering about placement
and possibly changing current conditions and ultimate utility configurations. He reported that
the project would need to be phased and the improvements done in certain order.

COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS

Mayor Pro Tem Macleamy asked whether the hiring of Mr. Greenberg had resulted in a
reduction of City staff time regarding Park matters, to which Ms. Capriola responded that it had
and stated that Mr. Frei would make the determination of whether his performance warrants a
salary increase.

Councilmember Eklund stated that she had suggested looking at whether LAFCO can change the
Park’s sanitary district from Las Gallinas to Novato Sanitary to save money and so lifters and
pumps are not needed. Mr. Skinner replied that staff time to look at the sewer situation has been
budgeted.

PUBLIC COMMENT

4. Mike Read asked whether reports done today would be relevant in 10 to 20 years and
spoke in opposition to a rent increase. He asked that a flat rate of 2% not be imposed as
that would penalize those residents who already pay a higher rate than others.

5. Sandy Duncan asked why is there $7,000 in the budget to install a projector and screen in
the ballroom and how many times would it be used. She felt the funds should be used
toward the engineering study instead.

6. Henry Firmer expressed concerns about the water quality in Marin Valley, stating that the
water was very hard and asked whether there have there been studies?

7. Jan Thomas stated that speakers should be required to state their addresses first and that
Mike Read did not live at the Park.

8. Frank Simpson spoke regarding the rent increase, stating that the discrepancy among
amounts paid by residents needs to be addressed.

9. Anila Manning stated that, when looking at the option of having individual electric
meters at each site, Smart meters should not be considered.

Ms. Capriola responded to questions raised during public comment. Regarding the matter of
studies becoming obsolete, she said that the goal was to do work that would be usable in the
future no matter what changes occur and that conceptual planning can be used as a base. On the
issue of rent, she stated that there are limited options on what we can do about rent. She said the
new rate would go into effect January 2015, so would be collected for half of the fiscal year.

Assistant City Attorney Nebb spoke to the issue of rent discrepancy, stating that the
discrepancies already existed when the Park was purchased. She said that the differentials in rent
amounts were related to factors such as the size of the space and whether or not the space had a

cc140603_MVMCC
7111/2014 3



view. She stated that under the previous ownership and prior to the City's rent control ordinance,
turnover in mobile home ownership normally resulted in the rent being raised if the owner so
chose, but that was no longer the case after the City instituted rent control for mobile homes in
1997, and that as to Marin Valley, no new differentials related to mobile home turnover have
occurred since the City took over ownership of the Park. Related to the flat rate increase, she
stated that, if a flat dollar figure increase was applied, it would not close the existing differential
but likewise would not contribute to increasing the differential. She explained, however, that
the City is restricted from flattening the rent differential by raising the rents of the lower rent
spaces in the park because our own City ordinance states that rents may only be increased by
100% of CPI. She added that, since the City is obligated by our loan agreement to meet its debt
service coverage ratio, we likewise cannot flatten the rent differential by decreasing the higher
rents to meet those that are lower. The only real options that the City has to flatten the rent
differential would be to possibly make incremental adjustments to reduce the differential gap.

Regarding the projector and screen proposal, PAC President Jim Olsen said that the vision was to
hold movie nights and renting the space for other uses. He said it was second time the idea had
been brought forward and that, several times per year, presentations were given and a projector
and screen would have been useful. In response to a question from Councilmember Eklund
regarding whether there was resident support for the idea, Mr. Olsen stated that he hadn't heard
any opposition.

Mr. Skinner spoke to the question about water quality, stating that the Water District had
performed a study two years prior, sampling and screening for content, and, at the time, all tests
met standards for safety. Regarding individual meters, he said that would be part of the
engineering study but that Smart meters may be mandated by PG&E.

Councilmember Kellner moved, Seconded by Councilmember Athas, to approve the FY 14/15
Budget — Operating and Capital — for Marin Valley Mobile Country Club (MVMCC) as amended
to move funding of the generator to the next fiscal year and to approve funding the Engineering
Study out of the longterm infrastructure reserve fund. The motion carried unanimously.

F. REGULAR REPORTS

4, PARK MANAGEMENT UPDATE: AL FREI
Mr. Frei reported on the progress of the onsite staff added after last year's budget process, stating
that the new manager, Matt Greenberg, has far exceeded expectations. He said the Park was

benefitting from the resources made available by the City, such as Mr. Skinner’s engineering
expertise, and working with Ms. Capriola over the last two years had been a great experience.

cc140603_MVMCC
7111/2014 4



S. UPDATE FROM PAC: JIM OLSON, PAC PRESIDENT

Mr. Olsen reported that, with the newly installed sign structure, four announcements can be
displayed at once. He stated that the HOL was coordinating all sorts of activities for residents,
that MVEST (Marin Valley Emergency Services Team) had been very active and that revised
clubhouse event and tree policies were being drafted.

Mr. Olsen also stated that he had financial concerns about the Park and felt it was unlikely that
all of the infrastructure improvements that would be needed over the coming years could be
covered. He felt that the rent increase was needed and that it was vital to develop a plan for
infrastructure work going forward. He said that as more things that need to be done require
approval from the City, turnaround needed to be quicker and advocated for less planning, less
talking and more doing. He concluded by announcing that the following Saturday was his last
day on the PAC Board, and thanked the Council and staff.

G. BOARD/STAFF COMMENTS
None
H. ADJOURNMENT

At 8:22 p.m., the meeting was adjourned in memory of Ted McCarthy.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular
meeting of the Novato City Council.

Sheri Hartz, City Clerk

cc140603_MVMCC
7111/2014 5



